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BOSKALIS SUBSEA SERVICES L‘IMIT‘ED
(Formerly Rever Offshore UK Limited)

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

The directors present the strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Principal activities
The principal activities of Boskalis Subsea Services Limited are the project management and executlon of offshore
inspection, repair, malntenance and construction services to the offshore industry.

Change in ownership

Boskalis Subsea Services Limited ("the Company" or “BSSL"), formerly Rever Offshore UK L|m|ted ("ROUK") was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Rever Offshore International Limited for most of 2020. Rever Offshore International
Limited itself is part of the Fara Holdco Limited Group (“Fara” or “the Group”). During the year, as part of a pre
disposal restructuring, Rever Offshore International Limited transferred its interests in ROUK to a fellow subsidiary
within the Fara Group, Rever Offshore North Star Limited (now Boskalis Subsea North Star Limited). On 23
December, the Fara Group disposed of its interests in a number of entities within the Group, including ROUK and its
immediate parent, Rever Offshore North Star Limited, to Boskalis Offshore Contracting BV. Boskalis Offshore
Contracting BV is itself a wholly owned subsidiary of Royal Boskalis Westminster NV, a Company listed on Euronext
Amsterdam (“Boskalis” or “Boskalis Group”). Subsequent to the year end, on 18 January 2021 foIIowmg the
acqwsmon by Boskalis, the Company changed its name to Boskalis Subsea Services Limited.

Review of the business :

The Company reported revenue of £80.5m (2019: £113.1m) and an operating loss before exceptional items of £33k
(2019: £18.7m). An exceptional credit of £0.3m was incurred (2019: exceptional costs of £3.4m). This credit relates
to the treatment of intercompany balances across the Fara Group. As part of a pre-disposal restructuring,
intercompany balances were reviewed with balances due between entities remaining within the Fara Group (“legacy
entities”) and entities being disposed of to the Boskalis Group (*target entities”) being capitalised, settled or forgiven.
As a result of this review, the Company was formally released from its obligation to repay loans to legacy entities
resulting in the Company recognising a capital contribution of £13.1m. Further, net residual trading balances
amounting to £0.3m which were due to be paid by the Company to legacy entities were also forgiven with this element
being recognised in the profit and loss account. The exceptional costs in the prior year related to restructuring and
redundancy costs (£2.3m) and a provision against an irrecoverable foreign VAT balance (£1.1m).

During 2020 the Company achieved a dramatic improvement in its results whilst continuing to work in challenging
conditions as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. Despite a reduction in revenue from £113.1m to £80.5m, the
Company.reported almost breakeven operating profit before exceptional items, compared to a loss of £18.7m in the _
prior year. This is mainly due to the decision made in late 2019 to take one of the DSV's, the Rever Sapphire, out of
the fleet resulting in a lower vessel cost base. Projects executed in the year were generally profitable with lump sum
risk significantly reduced when compared to 2019. Overheads reduced from £14.3m to £9.6m mainly as a result of
headcount restructuring following the reduction to fleet size and then again during the early stages of the COVID-19
pandemic. A temporary reduction in staff costs of 20% was in place from April 2020 through to the end of the year.
The Company also made use of the Government Job Retention Scheme and furloughed a small number of staff for
a period of time in 2020, receiving a grant of £0.2m which has been reported as otherincome. The Company incurred
£2.2m of additional operating costs throughout 'the pandemic. This was mainly in relation to increased pre-
-mobilisation crew costs as extra offshore personnel had to be tested and placed in quarantine to ensure a full crew
could be mobilised for projects, as well as PCR testing costs and other incidental costs, which is reported within costs
of sales. The Company was able to recover £1.7m revenue against these costs from clients Ieavmg the-Company
with a net cost of £0.5m.

Market outlook

Whilst market conditions remained challenging in 2020 for the reasons noted above, the Company has continued to
secure new work, maintain service levels and achieve ongoing trust from customers. As at 31 August 2021, 80% and
71% of the utilisation target for the Polaris and Topaz respectively has been contracted at current market rates. Whilst
the DSV market environment continues to be competitive, and notwithstanding the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Company has viewed early market activity in 2021 and more stable vessel rates than in recent years. Following
the change of ownership to the Boskalis Group, the directors look forward to the future and remain confident that the
Company will have the strength and flexibility to capitalise on new opportunities.
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BOSKALIS SUBSEA SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly Rever Offshore UK Limited)

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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Principal risks and uncertainties

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company’s governance framework was incorporated within that of the
wider Fara Holdco Group. Fara's governance framework includes clear and delegated -authorities. on business
performance monitoring and ensuring appropriate insurance for a wide range of potential risks. The framework for
risk management governance is defined by the board and support functions including Finance, QHSE, IT and HR.
These functions apply risk management processes and controls and also develop policies and standards which the
business align to their processes. Following the acquisition of the Company by Boskalis, a detailed management of
change process is being followed to bring the Company under the Boskalis governance framework. The narrative '
below describes the processes which were in place for the year ended 2020. Similar, if not more stringent processes
will continue to be followed going forward under the Boskalis governance framework.

Risk was monitored and reported through regular board meetings and monthly leadership team meetings. Monthly
Finance, QHSE, IT and HR reports are provided to the leadership team. The Corporate Risk Register ("CRR") was ,
used to capture risk, controls, monitor risk realisation and risk assurance and verification activities. The CRR was
reviewed and revised at least quarterly and was tabled at board meetings.

The tables below set out how the key risks within the business are linked to business strategy, how we have rated
the risks and the key performance indicators used to monitor the risks. There are a number of other risks that are
managed that are not considered to be key risks. In addition to the risks detailed in the tables below, the Company
also faced risks associated with the COVID-19 pandemic. These are covered in further detail later in this strategic
report in the COVID-19 section. . ‘

Performance’
Principal risk and uncertainties ~ Mitigation _indicators

Competition .

The Company faces competition to win work to e We have a strong customer focus, differentiating  Client feedback
maintain utilisation for its vessel. This results in ourselves with the quality of service provided to through FPAL
both pricing and contractual pressures, where terms  clients.

can be more onerous and impact the financial Order backlog
performance of projects. .

Vessels may have to be taken out of service for unexpected lengths of time or require extensive repairs or
modifications. ’
The delay in the provision of servicestoclients may e We adopt a robust asset management Offshore days
have a material adverse effect on our business, programme integrating asset integrity and
results of operations, financial conditon and assurance  programmes, condition based
prospects. monitoring and the adoption of a reliability centred
. maintenance approach; and
Insufficient funds to cover costs of unpredictable '
and substantial dry-dock repairs. eWe use market intelligence to understand the
availability of charter vessels.
A delay in vessel maintenance could affect our
contracted project schedule and have a material
adverse effect on our business and results of
operations.

Climate change risks

Rising sea levels and extreme weather conditions eWaiting on weather clauses included in project Project margins
impact the business in timing of project delivery and  contracts Vessel utilisation
pricing on projects customers. ‘Offshore days
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BOSKALIS SUBSEA SERVICES LIMITED
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED) -

~ FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Principal risk and uncertainties

Financial risks

The Company'’s activities expose it to a number of
financial risks including credit risk, market risk and
liquidity risk and is operating in a challenging
economic environment.

Reduced service delivery onshore and offshore.

The award of work is dependent on being able to
offer new and existing customers the correct level
of service delivery. Service delivery includes the
quality of work delivered, the level of contractual risk
retained and the price of services delivered.

Failure to offer the correct service delivery may
result in the Company failing to secure budgeted
utilisation. Failure to build the correct pricing and
risk profile in our projects at tendering stage may
result in operational losses.

Mitigation

e The Group has robust internal procedures to
monitor cash and liquidity. Regular trading and
cash flow forecasts are prepared and appropriate
mitigation steps taken where necessary. Going
forward, detailed reviews will be undertaken by the
Boskalis Group Treasury function;

e Exchange rate exposure is managed as far as is
possible through contractual terms or matching
costs in the same currencies;

e The Company enters forward contracts or hedges
as considered appropriate;

e The Company monitors the credit risk with
customers. Receivables stated in the balance
sheet are net of allowances for. expected credit
losses; -

e The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative
financial instruments is
counterparties are banks with recognised credit
ratings assigned by .international credit-rating
agencies; and

e Derivatives are not entered on a speculative
basis. .

e We focus on building the correct risk profile at
tendering stage;

e We have high quality resource planning,
scheduling and delivery through the implementation
of robust process and procedure and defined roles
and responsibilities;

e Customer focused approach utilising stakeholder
feedback and continuous improvement through
monitoring, audit and review; :

e We utilise Project Delivery lessons learned data;
and

e We have rigorous supply chain management
policies to reduce expenditure and enhance
efficiencies.

Unable to attract and retain sufficient skilled personnel to meet our operational requirements

The inability to attract or retain highly skilied
personnel for our manned diving and remote
intervention operations could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and results of operations. :

We use market intelligence to assist in resource and
contingency planning;

We realise the talent of our people through
dedicated learning and development programmes;
and ’

We have developed offices across the UK to access
new talent pools.

limited because the

Performance
indicators
Cash flow

Foreign exchange
gains or losses

Expected credit
losses .

Trade receivable
days

Tendering win rate

Percentage of
repeat clients

Client feedback

Staff retention
rates

-3-
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" Principal risk and uncertainties

Mitigation

The United Kingdom leaving the European Union (EU)

Although the United Kingdom has now left the EU,
it is still unclear what long term impact “Brexit” will
have on the Company. This may impact the
business by resulting in increased documentation
requirements to trade with suppliers, increased
tariffs and cost of goods as well as significant delays
in transporting goods in and out of the EU. There
may also be travel disruption affecting project
planning and crewing. Early signs are that there will
be no material impact but this is continuing to be
monitored.

Fluctuating oil price

The fluctuating oil price impacts upon expenditures
by our clients as they look to cut costs, cease
operations on some oil and gas assets and defer
work on others. Any reduction in activity could lead
to ‘a decline in the demand for our services and
-impact both utilisation as well as day rates.. A
prolonged downturn could materially and adversely
impact our strategic intent and results.

e The Company is involved in an industry wide Oil

. and Gas UK Brexit Risk Mitigation workgroup;

e Internal Group Brexit impact Group has been
formed to share knowledge; ;

e Review of suppliers to determine those based in
the EU and liaise with key suppliers to ensure that
they have considered risk to their supply chain;

® Monitor legislative changes;

o Logistics team are actively considering shipment
and customs formalities; and

e Project planning reviewing travel risks for crewing
vessels .

e Maximise backlog and plan assets and resources
appropriately;

e Focus on customer services and new products
and services so that clients see us best in the field;

e Focus on cost control; and

e Regular two-way dialogue with key clients to
understand their in order to

Performance
indicators’

Project cost
reviews

Key supplier
management

Client feedback

Project cost
reviews

Rolling cash and
performance
planning

activity plans
understand any risk of cancellation or deferral at the
earliest opportunity and to communicate asset
schedule availability to obtain optimum® asset
utilisation.

COVID-19
The majority of 2020 was impacted by a novel strain of coronavirus (“COVID-19") which surfaced in China at the end
of 2019 and spread around the world resulting in worldwide business and social disruption. This had an impact on
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020, with a robust emergency response plan being put in place
by the directors to manage the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. Whilst there were still risks, the business adjusted
well to working within this environment as can be seen from the results achieved in the business in 2020 which are
discussed in further detail above in the review of the business section of this strategic report. As a result the Company
maintained scheduled operations throughout the pandemic but was impacted by higher costs related to containing
the virus as detailed in the review of the business above. In order to protect employees, the Company rolled out PCR
testing for offshore personnel and adhered to Government advice in relation to attendance on vessels and onshore
sites. Access to onshore sites was only permitted for essential or emergency business, with staff working from home,
along with strict monitoring of access to the warehouse in order to reduce the risk of potential cross-contamination.
Visitors onto the vessels used by the Company were restricted to essential personnel only. Offshore staff were
required to confirm recent travel history and a clear PCR test prior to being mobilised onto the vessels. Where
possible, these costs were shared with clients. The Company also followed advice from various industry bodies with
. regards to health and safety in light of third parties postponing the provision of offshore survival and medical training.
In order to mitigate the costs to the Company and also to relieve cash flow constraints, the Company made use of the
various schemes introduced by the UK Government such as furlough grants and delaying payments to HMRC under
HMRC's time to pay arrangements that were introduced in response to the pandemic. The operational measures
described above continue to be followed in 2021, and will continue to be followed for as Iong as is required in order
to protect the health and safety of employees
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BOSKALIS SUBSEA SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly Rever Offshore UK Limited)

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAk ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

As well as the direct impact of COVID-19 on the mobilisation of staff on vessels and closing access to onshore sites,
the COVID-19 pandemic had a knock on impact on the oil price and therefore projects undertaken by clients. The-
risk of oil price fluctuations is assessed in the assessment of principal risks and uncertainties above. The directors
viewed some work scopes being deferred from 2020 into future years and took steps to mitigate against this. The
directors, whilst aware that a prolonged disruption due to the COVID-19 pandemic or any future disruptions from
future waves of the virus could have further impact on the oil price and therefore the projects planned by clients,
remain positive in light of early market activity in 2021 and an increase in secured backlog as referred to in the market
outlook above. Furthermore, the business quickly adjusted to working safely and effectively in the COVID environment
and management remain in continuous dialogue with key clients to understand their future requirements in order to
manage resources and assets effectively.

Key performance indicators
The directors managed the business of the Company on a wider UK business basis and therefore key performance
mdlcators are not deemed relevant for the Company on a standalone basis.

Section 172(1) Statement
Section 172(1) of the Companies Act 2006 (“sectlon 172") provides that a director of a company must act in a way
that he considers, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the company for the benefit of its
members as a whole, and in doing so have regard (amongst other matters) to various other stakeholder interests -
below are the six key factors:
a) the likely consequences of any decision in the long term;
b) the interests of the company's employees;
c) the need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;
~d) the impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment;
‘e) the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and
f) the need to act fairly as between members of the company

The narrative below describes the process which was in place for the year ended 2020. Over the course of 2021,
“steps will be taken in order to integrate the Company’s processes to be in line with those of the Boskalis Group. A
detailed management of change process will be followed and in doing so, the directors will ensure that the
requirements of section 172 are met in adopting any changes.

In order to ensure good corporate governance, including the necessity to meet the requirements of section 172, the
Company's directors met on a frequent basis. These meetings occurred at least weekly, and more often where
required, particularly whilst working in the COVID-19 environment. In order to ensure that all pertinent matters were
addressed, these meetings often included the directors of the Company as well as members of the leadership team
‘who had more detailed responsibility delegated to them in relation to the day to day running of the business. Further,
regular meetings were also held with the directors of the Fara Holdco Limited, which was the ultimate parent company
for much of the year ended 31 December 2020 until the acquisition of the Company by the Boskalis Group at the end
of December. As the ultimate parent company, Fara Holdco Limited was viewed as being a key stakeholder of the
Company during the year. These meetings provided the directors of the Company an opportunity to discuss key
issues and decisions with this stakeholder to ensure that the proposed outcomes aligned with the Fara Board'’s long
term strategy for the wider Group. For example, more frequent meetings were held whilst discussing the Fara Board's
intention to dispose of its interest in the Company to the Boskalis Group, although these meetings were held with only
the directors of the Company for confidentiality reasons.

From 2021 onwards, a key stakeholder in the Company is the Board and leadership team of the wider Boskalis Group.
Boskalis Group operates a fixed monthly cycle of reporting whereby local management present the results and key
issues to the Offshore Energy Divisional management team. There is also a structured quarterly reporting cycle in
order for local management to present the results and key issues to the Boskalis Board of Management. This process
provides the directors with the information that they require to ensure that the Company is aligned to the long term
strategy of the wider Group.

Other key stakeholders along with how the directors engage with them to protect their interests are detailed below.
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(Formerly Rever Offshore UK Limited)

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

i Employees R
The employees are fundamental to the business. As further detailed in the principal risks and uncertainties section
of the strategic report, the Company has a requirement for highly skilled personnel for the manned diving and remote
intervention operations. The inability to retain and motivate employees would have a detrimental impact on the
business, results and relationships with key clients. Training and learning and development programmes are offered
to staff. Employees are encouraged to feed back to management through mediums such as town hall meetings and
employee surveys. Communication with employees is vital, news and announcements are posted within Engage
(business management system) and employee surveys are issued regularly. To remain engaged with the offshore
workforce, the directors and members of the leadership team commit to a timetable of vessel visits throughout the
year. Since the year end, there have been fortnightly townhalls with management to address any concerns staff may
have following the Boskalis acquisition of the Company, where the leadership team update the staff on progress with
integration as well as updates on how the Company is performing and staff have the opportunity to present questions
either in advance or during the townhall meeting.

ii Contractors and suppliers

Delays in the provision of services to clients may have a material adverse impact on the Company's business, results
and reputation. As referred to in the principal risks and uncertainties section of the strategic report, it is of the utmost
importance to ensure that vessels do not have to be taken out of service for unexpected lengths of time. Itis also -
critical to ensure access to chemicals and gases required for the provision of manned diving services. The commercial
department collaborates with contractors, suppliers and the full supply chain, including providers of charter vessels to
ensure uninterrupted supply of vessels to clients, to share best practice and improve performance with feedback
provided to the directors. Regular supplier audits are also carried out, following a standardised checklist to allow
consistent comparison between suppliers. Feedback is provided to the directors, and where necessary, the directors
will also engage with key suppliers and contractors to ensure that good working relationships are maintained.

iii Customers . Co ‘

As detailed in the principal risks and uncertainties section of the strategic report, the award of tenders from clients is
dependent on being able to offer both new and existing customers exceptional levels of service delivery which includes
the quality of the work for a fair price. Whilst project managers lead the day to day delivery of service to the client,
utilising a customer focused approach, obtaining feedback from clients through monitoring, audit and review and
ensuring any lessons learned are actioned. The project managers provide feedback to the directors, and the directors
will also regularly meet with key customers to ensure that the Company's reputation is upheld. Regular discussions
were held during the year ended 2020 with customers in order to discuss the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and
the steps required to ensure safe operations.

iv Industry bodies

The company is a member of IMCA (International Marine Contractors Assomatlon) Oil and Gas UK and Decom North
Sea. The Company’s CEO is a member on the industry board of Subsea UK. The Company’s management system,
Engage is certified as an integrated system to ISO 9001, 14001 and 45001.

Environmental performance is reviewed through an Environmental Committee which reports to the leadership team.
This committee is responsible for setting the environmental agenda and areas for improvement as well as reporting
on key environmental key performance indicators including vessel fuel.usage.

Whilst the Company was a wholly owned subsidiary of the Fara Group during the year, the directors provided
information to the external shareholders of the Group given the significance of the Company's activities and
performance to the Fara Group. The majority shareholders of the Fara Group had Board representation and the
relationship between the directors and the Fara Board is already discussed earlier in this statement. The directors
acted fairly between all members of the Group by providing bi-annual information, including commentary on the
Company's results, via a shareholders’ portal to allow minority shareholders access to information on the Company’s
performance and provide the shareholders the opportunity to ask questions on this information.;
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Events after the balance sheet date

As discussed elsewhere in this strategic report, on 18 January 2021 the Company changed its name from Rever
Offshore UK Limited to Boskalis Subsea Services Limited following the disposal of the Company from the Fara Holdco
Group to the Boskalis Group. .

This report was approved by the Board and signed on its behalf

DocuSigned by:

S MeLpmmadiic
175AB839ECD8941C...
Jane McConnachle
Director

Date: 9 September 2021
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BOSKALIS SUBSEA SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly Rever Offshore UK Limited)

DIRECTORS' REPORT ,
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Results . :

The loss for the year, after taxation, amounted to £7.8m (2019: £29.9m). The directors do not propose the payment
of a final dividend. ’ -

Dividends
No dividends were declared or paid in the current or prior year.

Directors
The directors, who served throughout the year and up to the date of signing except as noted, were as follows:

Barry John MacLeod L
Robert Campbell Bryce (resigned 18 January 2021)

Stuart lan Cameron . - . (appointed 18 January 2021)
Jane Martin McConnachie (appointed 18 January 2021)

Directors’ indemnities

The Company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors which were made
during the year and remain in force at the date of this report. The indemnity insurance covers the directors for their
director roles in fellow Group companies. ’

Political donations ‘
No charitable donations were made during the current or prior year.

Going concern

The Company’s operating activities, together with details of the acquisition of the Company by the Boskalis Group
are set out in the strategic report. The business of the Company remains the same following the change in ownership,
as detailed on page 1 of the strategic report. The acquisition of the Company’s business by Boskalis places the
Company on a strong grounding for future development, performance and positioning within the market. The
Company now forms part of Boskalis Subsea Services, a business unit within the Offshore Energy division. The
Subsea Services division operates 5 DSV’s, including the Polaris and Topaz

As noted in the strategic report on page 4 the Company has been both directly and indirectly impacted by the COVID-
19 pandemic. However, throughout the COVID-19 outbreak, the Company has successfully continued to provide
essential services to clients who are mostly major operators in the UKCS, achieving satisfactory utilisation and rates
as the industry adapts to operating in these conditions. There is reasonable visibility as to the Company's order
portfolio in the next 12 months, however, due to the nature of the Company’s operations there is a trend of seasonable .
unpredictability as to the value and timing of short term cash inflows from clients. The Company continues to have
constructive and positive conversations with clients to assist in planning vessel utilisation with market intelligence
suggesting demand will grow in 2022 and 2023.

In considering whether the Company has the cash reserves required to enable it to continue to trade for at least 12
months from the date of approval of the financial statements a severe downside has been considered.

- Additional information on going concern is set out on note 1.3 of the financial statements.

The directors have formed the judgement that at the time of approving the financial statements, the Company has
adequate cash and liquid resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future based on the
current operating climate. For this reason, the going concern basis continues to be adopted in preparing the financial
statements.
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Future outlook

Whilst market conditions remained challenging in 2020 as detailed in the strategic report, the Company has continued
to secure new work, maintain service levels and achieve ongoing trust from customers. Following the change in
ownership to Boskalis Group, the Company has viewed early market activity in 2021, stable vessel rates and an
increase to backlog. As at 31 August 2021, 75% of the utilisation target for the vessels operated by the business
have been contracted at current market rates. The directors look forward to the future with confidence that the
Company will have the strength and flexibility to capitalise on new opportunities.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
Details of the financial risk management objectives and policies are discussed in the Principal Rlsks and Uncertainties
section of the strategic report on page 3.

\

Energy and carbon reporting

Following new Streamline Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) Regulatuons the company presents its
consumption and carbon emission data looking at relevant business activities, mainly the fleet and equipment
involved in operations. This is the first year of reporting emissions therefore no comparatives are provided.

Emissions (*)

(tCO:ze)
2020
Scope 1 - Direct activities . .
Emlssmns from transport fuel used in prOJect fleet and equipment 22,289
Scope 2 - Indirect activities
Emissions from gas consumption 14
Emissions from electricity consumption . . ) ’ _ 137
Emissions from total scope 1 and 2 activities - 22,440
Total energy equivalent (kWh) . , i 85,550,592
Intensity ratio — COze / £m turnover ‘ : 0.28

* this information is unaudited -

i

It is not practical for the Company to track scope 3 emissions and therefore these have not been reported.

The Company is aware of the environmental impacts of its activities and as a global business is committed to
improving energy efficiency. The Company pursues emissions-reducing technology, work methods and
behaviours to optimise its operational fuel efficiency. The wider Boskalis Group is exploring carbon offset and
credits as well as focusing research and development for low carbon fuels and technologies that will power the
fleet of vessels and equipment in the future, such as hydrogen, methanol, ethanol and ammonia as alternatuve
fuels. The Boskalis Group has committed to become climate neutral by 2050.

The Company’s approach follows the UK Government's Enwronmental Reporting Guidelines for streamlined
energy and carbon reporting guidance and in calculating our emissions, we have used the 2020 UK Government
- conversion factors for greenhouse gas (GHG) reporting.

Events after the balance sheet date

Details of significant events since the balance sheet date are detailed in the strategic report on page 7 and in note 26
to the financial statements.
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Existence of branches outside the UK
The Company has branches, as defined in S1046(3) of the Companies Act 20086, outside the UK as follows:

Trinidad and Tobago
The Netherlands
Ireland
Auditor |
Each of the persons who.i is a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:
o.  so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are
unaware; and
_ e .the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make
himself/herself aware of any relevant audit mformatlon and to establish that the company's audltors are aware
of that information.

Deloitte LLP have expressed their wnllmgness to continue in oﬁ' ice as auditors and appropriate arrangements are
being made for them to be deemed reappointed as auditors in the absence of an Annual General Meeting.

This report was approved by the Board and signed on its behalf

DocuSigned by:

Jane McCowduc

175A839ECD8941C...
Jane McConnachie
Director
Date: 9 September 2021

-10-
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'BOSKALIS SUBSEA SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly Rever Offshore UK Limited)

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

N

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the fi nanmal statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
.directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law), ‘including FRS 101 "Reduced
Disclosure Framework". Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the
Company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed; and

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless |t is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

\

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities. .
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BOSKALIS SUBSEA SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly Rever Offshore UK Limited)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements of Boskalis Subsea Services Limited (the ‘company’):

e give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of its loss for.the year
then ended;

e« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”; and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
the statement of comprehensive income;

the statement of financial position;

the statement of changes in equity; and

the related notes 1 to 26.

:

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. . .

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC's’) Ethical Standard, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern ’
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears

to be matenally misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are

required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If,

based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
. we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

-12-
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BOSKALIS SUBSEA SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly Rever Offshore UK Limited)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Responsmllltles of directors .

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the d|rectors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. ’

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease. operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further descfiption of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC'’s website at:
www.frc.orq.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.
We considered the nature of the company’s industry and its control environment, and reviewed the company’s
documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We also
enquired of management about their own identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the company operates in, and identified the

key laws and regulations that: '

o had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. These
included Companies Act 2006 and UK tax legislation; and

« do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with WhICh may be fundamental to the
company’s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty These included anti- bnbery legislation and local heaith
and safety laws and regulations.

We discussed among the audit engagement team, including tax specialists, regarding the opportunities and incentives
that may exist within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements.

As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in respect of judgments associated
with determining the percentage complete of lumpsum contracts ongoing at year-end. To address the fraud risks we:
e enquired from management about ongoing lumpsum contracts at year-end;
e assessed the progress of lumpsum projects at year-end;
e inspected customer contracts; and
« assessed the revenue recognition accounting policy.

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk
of management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested the
appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making
accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business ratlonale of any S|gn|fcant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:
o reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compllance with
provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

-13-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 228AA3E1-7011-416A-8A49-A7B71A4162F8

BOSKALIS SUBSEA SERVICES LIMITED ‘
(Formerly Rever Offshore UK Limited) ' '

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

L

e performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of
material misstatement due to fraud;

e enquiring of management and external legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims, and
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

* reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance and reviewing correspondence with HMRC

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the fnanc1a| year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

e the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception '
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters-if, in our opinion:
* adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
" branches not visited by us; or

e _ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of our report : :
This report is made solely to the company’s members as a body, in- accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s mcmbe‘rs
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

DocuSigned by:

CB6C540B204A481...
David Mitchell CA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

Glasgow, United Kingdom
9 September 2021
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BOSKALIS SUBSEA SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly Rever Offshore UK Limited)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit / (loss)

'Administrative expenses
Government grant income
"Other operating income

Operating loss before excéptional items

Exceptional items
Operating profit / (loss)
Finance income

Finance costs

Loss before taxation

Tax (charge) / credit on loss

Loss for the financial year

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Currency translation differences

Total items that may be reciassiﬁed_ to profii or loss

Total comprehensive loss for the year

2020 . 2019

Notes £000 £000
5 180,463 113,002 -
(71,132) * (118,005)

9,331 (4,913)

(9,594) (14,257)

6 230 -
- 434

(33) ' (18,736)

285 (3,405)

252 (22,141)

9 7 27
10 o (8101) (6,532)
(7,842) (28,646)

1 . (1,282)
(7.,842) (29,928)

27 (29)

27 (29)

(7.815) . (29,957)

The statement of comprehensive income has been prepared on the basis that all operations are contihding operations.
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BOSKALIS SUBSEA SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly Rever Offshore UK Limited)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020 2019
Notes £000 £000
Non-current assets
Investments 12 - .
Property, plant and equipment 13 24,623 33,414
‘ 24,623 33,414
Current assets
Inventories 14 814 1,218
Trade and other receivables ‘ . 15 3,658 25,645
Current tax recoverable ' 188 352
Cash and cash equivalents ) 8,362 5,624
‘ 13,022 32,839
Current liabilities )
Trade and other payables 16 (58,497) (83,712)
Current tax liabilities . 1M (1,621) (1,650)
Provisions 18 - (1,370)
Lease liabilities - 17 (7,633) (7,281)
(67,751) (93,950)
Net current liabilities ' . (64,729) (58,154)
Total assets less current liabilities . (30,106) (24,740)
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities . 17 (17,854) (25,487)
Net liabilities (47,960) (53,247)
Equity
Called up share capital 19 - 17,000 . 17,000
Capital contribution 20 13,102 -
Accumulated losses : ' (78,062) (70,247)
Total deficit . . . (47,960) (53,247)

The financial statements of Boskalis Subsea Services Limited were approved by the board of directors and authorised
for issue on 9 September 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: .

DocuSigned by:
Jame Melpmmadiic
175A839ECDB8941C...

Jane McConnachie.
Director

Company Registration No. 04851172

Rt ' o . -16-
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BOSKALlS SUBSEA SERVICES LIMITED
‘ (Formerly Rever Offshore UK Limited)

STATEMENT OF C’HANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Share Capital Accum’d
capital contribution losses Total
-£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 2019 ) A 17,000 - - (40,290) (23,290)
. Year ended 31 December 2019: . : . . '
Loss for the year s _ - - '(29,928) (29,928)
Other comprehensive income: ’ -
Currency translation differences _ - - (29) (29) .
Total comprehensive loss for the year v - - (29,957) - (29,957)
Balance at 31 December 2019 - . 17,000 - (70,247) (53,247)
Year ended 31 December 2020: ) .
Loss forthe year ’ . - - (7.,842) (7,842)
Other comprehensive income:
Currency translation differences - - 27 27
, Total comprehensive loss for the year ' - : ’ - (7,815) (7,81Q5)
Capital contribution (note 20) - 13,102 . - 13,102
Balance at 31 December 2020 ' 17,000 13,102 (78,062) (47,960)
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BOSKALIS SUBSEA SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly Rever Offshore UK Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1 Accounting policies

Company information

Boskalis Subsea Services Limited ("the Company") is a private company limited by shares incorporated in the United
Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006 and is registered in England and Wales. The address of the registered office
is Westminster House, Crompton Way, Segensworth West, Fareham, United Kingdom. The nature of the Company's
operations and its principal activities are set out in the strategic report.

The principal accounting policies are summarlsed below. They have all been applled consistently throughout the year
and the preceding year.

1.1 Accountmg convention '

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework (FRS 101) and in accordance with applicable accounting standards. The Company has chosen
to adapt the formats of the statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income and has applied
the relevant presentation requirements of IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements §

The financial statements are presented in Great Brltlsh Pounds (£) which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency, being the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. Ail
values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£000) except when otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been pfepared on the historical cost basis unless otherwise specified within these
accounting policies and in accordance with FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework and the Companies Act 2006.
The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

A current tax liability of £1,650k had been incorrectly presented as a long-term provision at 31 December 2019. To
correct the prior period error, the balance sheet at 31 December 2019 has been restated to increase current tax
liabilities from the previously reported £nil to £1,650k and the provisions previously reported are reduced by the same
amount to £1,370k. Both amounts had been previously incorrectly presented as long-term liabilities, now restated to
be presented as short term-liabilities. The restatement has no impact on previously reported net assets as at 31
December 2019 or the result or cash flows for the year then-ended.

The Company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 101.

1.2 Financial reporting standard 101 - reduced disclosure exemptions
The Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101:
. the requirements of paragraphs 62, B64(d), B64(e), B64(g), B64(h), B64(j) to B64(m), B64(n)(ii), B64(o)(ii),
' B64(p), B64(q)(ii), B66 and B670f IFRS 3 "Business Combinations";
the requirements of paragraphs 91-99 of IFRS 13 "Fair Value Measurement";
] the requirements of the second sentence of paragraph 110 and paragraphs 113(a), 114, 115, 118, 119(a) to
(c), 120 to 127 and 129 of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers;

.. the requirement in paragraph 38 of IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" to present comparative
information in respect of: (i) paragraph 79(a) (iv) of IAS 1 and (ii) paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16" Property Plant
and Equnpment"

. the requirements of paragraphs 10(d), 10(f), 16, 38A to 38D, 39 to 40,111 and 134-136 of IAS 1 "Presentation
of Financial Statements"”;
the requirements of IAS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows";

. the requirements of paragraph 17 of IAS 24 "Related Party Disclosures";

. the requirements in IAS 24 "Related Party Disclosures” to disclose related party transactions entered into
between two or more members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which is a party to the transaction is
wholly owned by such a member; o
the requirements of paragraphs 134(d)-134(f) and 135(c)-135(e) of IAS 36 "Impairment of Assets"; and
the requirements of IFRS 7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures”.
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BOSKALIS SUBSEA SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly Rever Offshore UK Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1 Accounting policies (continued)

1.3 Going concern _

The Company’s operating activities, together with details of the acquisition of the Company by the Boskalis Group
are set out in the strategic report. . The Company has considered the current performance in the year to date, the
projected vessel utilisation and rates through to the end of 2021 and beyond and has carefully considered the level
of cash reserves required to enable it to continue to operate for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the
financial statements. :

The base case forecast for the next 12 months assumes a normalised level of utilisation based on repeat business
from key clients. The Company has a robust business development function that includes tracking market activity
and liaising directly with Client’s on future requirements. Several long-term agreements are agreed with key clients
contributing to stability when forecasting day rates for the next 12 months. It is not unusual for bockings for next
summer not to be made at this time and whilst winter periods are expected to remain competitive the Company is
confident in the high level of service that continues to be delivered to clients with the expectation being that repeat
business will be successfully maintained throughout the 12 month period similar to prior year levels.

The directors have considered a downside scenario where no further work is won in the winter season based on
restricted utilisation and revenue through the forecasted period. This severe downside relies on the Boskalis Group
not seeking repayment of £7.3 million currently due to Boskalis Finance B.V and demonstrates that no additional
financial support is required. Boskalis Finance B.V has confirmed that it will not seek repayment of the amounts due
at the balance sheet date for the period covered by the forecast. The directors have also received confirmation from
the immediate parent company and a fellow subsidiary of Royal Westminster Boskalis N.V that a combined £47.3m
due to the two parties at 31 December 2020 will not require repayment within 13 months of approval of these financial
. statements. ' :

Accordingly, the directors have formed the judgement that at the time of approving the financial statements, the
Company has access to adequate cash resources. to continue in operational existence for at least 12 months from
the date of approval of the financial statements. Consequently, the financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis. ' :
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BOSKALIS SUBSEA SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly Rever Offshore UK Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1 Accounting policies (continued)

1.4 Turnover

Turnover is largely derived from the provision of project management and execution of offshore inspection, repalr
maintenance and construction services to the oil and gas sector, recognised when provided to customers, and is
stated net of discounts and sales taxes. The directors consider all activities of the Company to fall within the offshore
sector within two distinct geographical regions. A segmental analysis can be found in note 5 below.

‘Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer (usually on dispatch of the goods), the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity and the costs incurred or to be incurred
in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from contracts for the provision of professional services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion
when the stage of completion, costs incurred and costs to complete can be estimated reliably. The stage of completion
is calculated by comparing costs incurred, mainly in relation to contractual hourly staff rates and materials, as a

. proportion of total costs. Where the outcome cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent
of the expenses recognised that are recoverable. See note 5 for detailed breakdown of revenue by contract.

1.5 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation ) .
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

- Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight
line basis to its residual value over their expected useful economic lives, as follows:

Vessel fleet and equipment : From date of purchase to the vessel age of 30 years
Other: .

Plant and equipment : 1to 5 years

Leasehold improvements Over the.lease term
Right-of-use assets ("ROU assets"} Over the lease term

Residual value represents the estimated amount which would currently be obtained from disposal of an asset, after
deducting estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age and in the condition expected at the end |
of its useful life.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and
the carrying value of the asset, and is recognised in the income statement.

1.6 Cash at bank and in hand
Cash and cash equivalents are basic ﬁnanmal assets and |ncIude cash in hand, deposits held at call wnh banks, and
other short-term |IC|UId investments with original maturities of three months or less.

1.7 Fixed asset investments
Fixed asset investments are stated at historical cost less provision for any impairment.
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BOSKALIS SUBSEA SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly Rever Offshore UK Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1 Accounting policies (continued)

1.8 Borrowings and finance costs
Borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance costs, including direct issue
costs, are recognised in the profit and loss account over the term of the related instruments.

1.9 Impairment of tangible assets

Assets, other than those measured at fair value, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet
date. If there is objective evidence of impairment, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss as described
below: -

Non-financial assets

An asset is impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after initial
recognition, the estimated recoverable value of the asset has been reduced. The recoverable amount of an asset is
the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Where indicators exist for a decrease in impairment loss, the prior impairment loss is tested to determine reversal. An
impairment loss is reversed on an individual impaired asset to the extent that the revised recoverable value does not
lead to a revised carrying amount higher than the carrying value had no impairment been recognised. Where a
reversal of impairment occurs in respect of ‘a cash-generating unit (CGU), the.reversal is applied first to the assets
(other than goodwill) of the CGU on a pro-rata basis.

Financial assets

For financial assets carried at cost less impairment, the |mpa|rment loss is the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the best estimate of the'amount that would be received for the asset if it were to be sold at the reporting
date. :

Where indicators exist for a decrease in impairment loss, and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the prior impairment loss is tested to determine reversal. An
impairment loss is reversed on an individual impaired financial asset to the extent that the revised recoverable value
does not lead to a revised carrying amount higher than the carrying value had no impairment been recognised.

1.10 Inventories .

Inventories comprises consumables and is stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to sell,
which is equivalent to net realisable value. Cost is calculated using weighted average method. Provision is made for
obsolete, sIow-moving or defective items where appropriate.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completlon and costs to be incurred in
marketlng, selling and distribution. .

1.11 Long term contracts

Where the outcome of a long-term contract can be estimated reliably; revenue and costs are recognised by reference
to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date. This is normally measured by the
proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs, except
where this would not be representative of the stage of completion. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included to the extent that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a long-term contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent
of contract costs incurred where it is probable they will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in
the period in wh|ch they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relatlng to revenue from contracts
with customers are provided in note 5.

-21-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 228AA3E1-7011-416A-8A49-A7B71A4162F8

BOSKALIS SUBSEA SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly Rever Offshore UK Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1 Accounting policies (continued)

1.12 Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised |mmed|ately in
. profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognlsed ona trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation.or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortlsed cost using the effective
interest method:
. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and
o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI):
Te the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both coIIectlng contractual
, cash flows and selling the financial assets; and
. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

The Company's financial assets comprise only those measured at amortised cost.

-
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1 Accounting policies {(continued)

Amortised cost and effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. assets that are credit-
impaired on initial recognition), the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial
recognition. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is
calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, mcludlng expected credit losses, to the amortised cost of
the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is ' measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference
between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross carrying amount of
a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost and at FVTOCI. For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

The Company has no purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets.
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “finance income” line item (note 9).

Foreign exchange gains and losses ‘ »
The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign.
currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.

Impalrment of financial assets

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credlt losses on investments in debt |nstruments that are
measured at amortised cost, lease receivables, trade receivables and contract assets. The amount of expected credit -
losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since |n|t|al recognition of the respective
financial instrument.

The Company always recognises lifetime ECL (expected credit losses) for trade receivables, contract assets and
lease receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based
on the Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific. to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date, including time value of money where appropnate

-For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly; since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL. -

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the

Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a

default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Company
considers both guantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical

experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information.
considered includes the future prospects of the industries in which the Company’s debtors operate, obtained from

economic expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations,

as well as consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast economic information that relate to the

Company's core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external (|f avallable) or internal
credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk for a particular financial instrument, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor, or the length of time
or the extent to which the fair value of a financial asset has been less than its amortised cost;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor; .

. significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor; and

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological environment
of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Company presumes. that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Company has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit nsk at the reporting
date. A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

1) the financial instrument has a low risk of default;
2) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

3) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Company considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has external credit rating of
‘investment grade’ in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an external rating is not available, the
asset has an internal rating of ‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has a strong financial position
and there is no past due amounts.

The Company regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk pefore the amount becomes past due.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

Definition of default : :
The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that financial assets that meet either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable: ' .

. when there is a breach 6f the financial terms of the contract with the debtor; or
. information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay
its creditors, including the Company, in full (without taking into account any collateral held by the Company).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Company considers that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Company has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets '
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

1) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

s

2) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
3) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower. a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

4) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
5) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

erte-off policy

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Company’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal adwce where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in prof‘ it or loss.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the

magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default

and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information as described above. As for

the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting
date.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. For a lease receivable, the cash flows used for determining the
expected credit losses is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the lease receivable in accordance with
IFRS 16.

If the Company has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrumernit at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the
previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting
date, except for assets for which the simplified approach was used.
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The Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for investments in debt instruments that
are measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in
the statement of financial position.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a ﬁnancial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. The Company
does not have compound instruments.

Equrty instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities .
All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.
The Company only has financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities measured subsequently at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination, (ii) held-for-
trading, or (iii) designated as at FVTPL are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of
each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the
instruments. These foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item in profit
or loss for financial liabilities that are not part of a designated hedging relationship. For those which are designated
as a hedging instrument for a hedge of foreign currency risk, foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of equity.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Company exchanges with the existing lender one debt instrument into another one with the substantially
different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, the Company accounts for substantial modification of terms of an
existing liability-or part of it as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new liability.
It is assumed that the terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the new
terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the original effective rate is at least 10
per cent different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability. If the
madification is not substantial, the difference between: (1) the carrying amount of the liability before the modification;
and (2) the present value of the cash flows after modification is recognlsed in profit or loss as the modification gain or
loss within other gains and losses.

113 Taxatlon
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax :
Current tax, including UK corporation tax and overseas tax, is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered)
using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only when there is legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and the
Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax .

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance
sheet date where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less
tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date. The deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
Deferred tax assets are regarded as recoverable and recognised in the financial statements when, on the basis of
available evidence, it is more likely than not that there will be swtable taxable profits -from which the future reversal
of the timing differences can be deducted.

Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that, on the basis of all available
evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future
reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for timing differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Company is able to control the reversal of the timing differences and it is probable that it will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference.

Where items recognised in other comprehensive income or equity are cﬁargeable to or deductible for tax purposes,

the resulting current or deferred tax expense or income is presented in the same component of comprehensive income .

or equity as the transaction or other event that resulted in the tax expense or income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if: a) the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities; and b) the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the. liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which sngmf‘ icant amounts of deferred tax liabilities -or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.
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1.14 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal or constructive present obligation as a result of a past event
and it is probable that the Company will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the reporting end date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation Where a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount
of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Restructuring provisions

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Company has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring
and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the
plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. The measurement of a restructuring provision includes
only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed
by the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing activities of the entity.

¢

1.15 Leases

The Company as a lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Company
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it
is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of
low value assets (such as tablets and personal computers, small items of office furniture and telephones). For these
leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the
lessee uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:
. Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;
.. Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the

commencement date;

. The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

o The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

o Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate
the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
(using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.
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The Company remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-df—use assety
whenever:

U The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resuiting in a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

. The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a
guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a
floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

. A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which
case the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the rewsed
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made
at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They are
subsequently measured at cost-less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Company incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on
which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
a provision is recognised and measured under |AS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-use asset, the
costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. If a

lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company

expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the

undeilying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The Company applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
-impairment loss as described in the ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ policy. .

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability and
the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in ‘Cost of sales’ or ‘Administrative expenses’ in profit
or loss.

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separéte non-lease components, and instead account for
any lease and assomated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Company has not used this practical
expedient. .

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reﬂect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Company’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

When a contract includes lease and non- lease components, the Company applies IFRS 15 .to allocate the
consideration under the contract to each component

1.16 Foreign exchange

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. The assets and liabilities
of overseas branches denominated in currencies other than GBP are translated into GBP at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at the average exchange rates
prevailing in the month of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation of overseas branches
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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1.17 Pension costs

The Company participates in various defi ned contribution schemes for employees The amount charged to the profit

and loss account in respect of pension costs is the contributions payable in the year. Differences between
" contributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the

balance sheet.

1.18 Exceptional items

items that are considered material either because of their size or their nature are shown as exceptional items to assist
the understanding of the Company's underlying performance within their relevant consolidated profit and loss category
and are explained in the notes to the financial statements.

1.19 Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply W|th the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
(including property, plant and equipment) are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable. The amounts received are presented in other income while the related
expense is presented separately in cost of sales or administration expenses.

2 Adoption of new and revised standards and changes in accounting policies

In the current year, the Company has applied the below amendments to IFRS Standards and Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that are effective for an annual period that begins on or after
1 January 2020. Their adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in
these financial statements. '

¢ Interest Rate Benchmark Reform amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7;

¢ COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions Amendment to IFRS 16;

e Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards; and

« Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of material. :
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In applying the Company's. accounting policies, which are described in note 1, the directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. .

Critical judgements :

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (the directors have not identified any
key sources of estimation uncertainty impact these financial statements), that the directors have made in the process
of applying the Company's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the financial statements.

Revenue and margin recognition on_long term contracts

Revenue on unfulfilled contracts is recognised based-on the estimated stage of completion and only when the
outcome of the contract can be estimated reliably. At 31 December 2020 there were no coritracts (2019: nil) in the
course of completion which required an assessment of the stage of completion and expected profitability. The stage
of completion is reviewed on a contract by contract basis. For wholly lump sum projects margin is only recognised
once at least 25% of the offshore phase of a long-term contract has been completed. If a loss is forecast this is
recognised immediately.

In the current year management have concluded that the most reliable measure of completlon against performance
obligations is based on the proportion of the total contract costs incurred to date.

Trinidad & Tobago indirect taxes:

The Company continues to have an open Value Added Tax (VAT) assessment from the Trinidad and Tobago tax
authorities (Board of Inland Revenue, "BIR"). The assessment relates to output VAT assessed by the BIR.in respect
of a customer project completed in 2008 in the amount of £3.4m (TT $31.5m). The Company is exploring options to
have the assessment reversed emphasising that the BIR suffered no loss with the VAT under assessment being fully
reclaimable by the Company's client. The outcome of these options is unknown at this stage.

Further, the BIR exercised statutory power to offset a £1.3m (TT $8m) receivable by the Company against the open
assessment. The VAT receivable relates to input VAT on purchases in Trinidad and Tobago as well as output VAT
previously paid over to the BIR in relation to a customer which subsequently entered into Chapter 11 _bankruptcy
proceedings receivable under bad debt relief provisions (see note 4). The Company has written off this VAT refund
receivable as at the present time it is unlikely that this erI be repaid given the period of time the VAT assessment
matter has been open with no resolution.

~
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4 Exceptional items

’ 2020 2019

' £000 £000

Forgiveness of intercompany debt ‘ 285 -
Redundancy and cold stacking : - (2,291)
Provision against irrecoverable Trinidad and Tobago VAT balance - (1,114)
285 (3,405)

An exceptional credit of £0.3m was incurred in relation to the treatment of intercompany balances across the Fara
Group. As part of a pre-disposal restructuring, intercompany balances were reviewed with balances due between
legacy entities and target entities being capitalised, settled or forgiven. As a result of this review, the Company was
formally released from its obligation to repay loans to legacy entities, namely Huskisson Shipping Limited and Rumford
Tankers Limited, resulting in the Company recognising a capital contribution of £13.1m (see note 20). Further, net
residual trading balances amounting to £0.3m which were due to be paid by the Company to legacy entities were also
forgiven with this element being recognised in the profit and loss account.

Following a strategic review at the end of the year ended 31 December 2019, the Fara Group announced its intention
to "cold stack" the Rever Sapphire DSV. The Rever Sapphire is owned by other subsidiaries in the Fara Group but
was utilised by the Company, as a member of the Fara Group, at the time of the strategic review. As well as removing
this DSV from the fleet, management decided to cease certain ROVSV activities. As well as the costs to be incurred
in relation to preparing the vessel for cold stacking, the Company also incurred redundancy costs in relation to
employees who worked on the Rever Sapphire and in ROV operations as well as a reduction in headcount in support
of these operations. This resulted in the Company recognising £2.3m in relation to redundancy, restructuring and
cold stacking costs.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company provided against VAT which is receivable from the Trinidad
and Tobago tax authorities ("BIR"). This relates mainly to VAT previously paid over on revenue in relation to a
customer which subsequently entered Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings. As the customer defaulted on payment,
the VAT balance paid to the BIR is therefore receivable under bad debt relief provisions. However at the present time
it remains unlikely that this will be recovered as the BIR has applied this amount towards the disputed VAT payable
amount discussed in the critical judgments section (see note 3) and contingent.liabilities (note 23).

Exceptional items impacting operating loss are wholly classified as cost of sales.
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5 Revenue from contracts with customers

5.1 Disaggregated Revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Cons IRM Decom Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Type of service ' _
Revenue from vessel contracts 5,667 44,471 4,649 509 55,296
Revenue from project management .
and engineering - 1,946 4,414 ' 973 541 . 7,874
Procurement revenue ’ 2,151 7,164 2,845 13 12,173
Fuel revenue | : 171 - 1,279 348 - 1,798
Other revenue 2,116 389 728 . 89 3,322
Total revenue with contracts with '
customers - 12,051 57,717 9,543 1,152 80,463
Geographical markets . .
Europe . 12,051 57,717 -~ 9,543 1,152 80,463
Timing of revenue recognitiori . o
Goods transferred at a point in time 2,151 7,164 2,845 13 12,173
Services transferred over a period of a ‘
time 9,900 50,553 6,698 1,139 68,290
Total revenue with contracts with ;
customers 12,051 57,717 09,543 | 1,152 80,463
! " Forthe year‘ended 31 December 2019
Cons IRM Decom Other Total
. - £000 _£000 £000 - . £000 £000
Type of service .
Revenue from vessel contracts 12,450 26,025 30,195 - 68,670
Revenue from project management ’ :
and engineering 1,778 2,752 3,236 - " 7,765
Procurement revenue 7,249 7,786 13,444 - 28,479
Fuel revenue ' 1,935 2,520 3,402 - ‘ - 7,857
Other revenue . - - . 321 ’ 321
Total reveﬁue with contracts with
customers . 23,412 39,083 50,276 321 113,092
, . ! -
'Geographlcal markets )
Europe 23,412 39,083 50,276 - 321 113,092
Timing of revenue recognition .
Goods transferred at a point in time 7,249 7,786 13,444 . - 28,479
" Services transferred over a period of ' : ; :
time ~ 16,163 31,297 36,832 321 84,613
Total revenue with contracts with
customers ' 23,412 39,083 . 50,276 321 113,092
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5 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

All revenue generated in the current and prior years is with external customers.
Inspection, repair and maintenance = “IRM”

Decommissioning = “Decom”

Constructions = “Cons”

5.2 Contract balances

2020 - 2019
£000 £000
Trade receivables ‘ 1,621 6,175
Accrued revenue 592 4,351

Deferred revenue 385 591

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 60 days.

5.3 Performance obligations

The transaction price is determined by reference to the contract with each customer. On a contract by contract basis
the Company determines whether it has a single of muitiple performance obligation(s). An estimate of progress
towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation(s) for contracts that qualify for revenue recognition over
time is selected and applied to the overall transaction prlce Where multlple performance obligations are identified
these comprise:

Vessel revenue

This represents the day rate of the vessel (including any equipment spreads specifically mcluded within the day rate)
plus any mobilisation and demobilisation fees. It is not possible to debundle this revenue any further per the terms of
IFRS 15.

Performance obligations in relation to the vessel revenue are recognised on a continuous basis usually based on
days worked by the project. The timings regarding the performance obligation will be specn‘ied in the terms of the
contract or the caII off order from a master contract.

Project management & engineering
This relates to the provision of the onshore personnel supporting the project contractually rechargeable the client.
Personnel rates are specified within the contract. Performance obligations are recognised on a continuous basis
based on time charged to the project.

Procurement :
Procurement relates to third party services and/or procurement required for project execution that can be contractually
recharged to the client. The contract specifies the mark up to be applied. Performance obligations are recognised on
a continuous basis when the goods or service has been received.

Fuel

Fuel relates to the cost of fuel utilised during-the course of vessel operations that can be contractually recharged to
the client. The contract specifies the calculation for the cost of fuel and mark up to be applied. Performance obligations
are recognised on a continuous basis as fuel is consumed by the vessel.

.Unsatisfied contracts

At the year end, the Company has contracts with which there are remaining performance obligations either partially
or fully unsatisfied of £385k (2019: £591k). These obligations are expected to be satisfied within 12 months of the
year end date.
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6 Operating profit / (loss)

2020 2019

. £000 £000
Operating profit / (loss) for the year is stated after charging /
Foreign exchange loss 66 105
Depreciation of owned assets ) ‘ 7 ’ 487 1,251
Depreciation of right-of-use assets . : ’ 8,379 8,812
Loss on.disposal of fixed assets 3 -
Government grant for the purpose of immediate financial support (230)/ -
Auditors’ remuneration - audit fees : . 95 115
Auditors’ remuneration — audit related services ) . . 20 -
Operating lease expense - other . - ' 2,077 5,822 .

In 2020, government grants of £230k (2019: £nil) were received as part of a Government initiative to provide
immediate financial support as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. These have been recognised as other income in
the year. There are no future related costs in respect of these grants Wthh were received solely as compensation
for costs incurred in the year.

The Company did.not incur any non audit fees in either the current or prior year.

7 Employees

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the Company dufing the year was:

2020 2019
S £000 £000 -

Management . 24 - 35
Operations . ) 91 119
Administration _ : ' ' 33 43
148 - 197

Their aggregate remuneration comprised: ‘
2020 2019
. v £000° £000
Wages and salaries e ’ : 9,834 15,134
Social security costs . 1,072 1,536
Pension costs - - e ‘ ' 452 800
11,358 17,470
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8 Directors' remuneration

During the year the directors were paid emoluments in relation to their services to the Company and its fellow
subsidiaries by this Company and also by another Company in the Fara Group prior to the acquisition of the Company
by the Boskalis Group. It is not practical to apportion dlrectors services to specific companies across the Group.
Total emoluments paid by Group companles to the directors in relation to their services to the Group amounted to
-£507k (2019: £1,131Kk).

© Two (2019: 'seven) executive directors are members of money purchase pension schemes and company contributions
in the year were £16k (2019: £70k).

Remuneration disclosed above mclude the following amounts paid to the hlghest paid director:

. 2020 2019
£000 - ~ £000
Total amount of emoluments 314 212

Contnbutlons of £9k (2019: £15k) have been made to. a money purchase scheme on behalf of the highest paid
director..

9 Finance income

. 2020 2019
£000 £000
Interest on bank deposits ' . 7 27
10 Finance costs '
2020 2019
£000 £000
Interest on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Interest payable to group undertakings _ _ 5,476 4,902
lnterest on other financial liabilities: N
Interest on lease liabilities 2,625 1,630
.8,101 . 6,532
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11 Income tax expense

2020 2019 -

, £000 ' £000
Current tax

UK corporation tax on loss for the current period . - 45
Adjustments in respect of prior periods - . 46
Foreign taxes and reliefs ' - 1,191
Total tax charge ‘ ' C - 1,282

The credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss per the income statement as follows:
) 2020 ' 2019
£000 £000
Loss before taxation : . (7,842) (28,646)
Expected tax credit based on a corporation tax rate 6f 19% (2019: 19%) . (1,490) (5,443)
Effect of expenses not deductible in determining taxable profit 326 1,258
Adjustment in respect of prior years ' ' - 239
Group relief - 1,429
Capital allowances in advance of depreciation ’ - . (1,416)
Research and development tax credits ) - : 44
Effect of overseas tax . - 958
Deferred tax not recognised 1,164 ’ 2,689
Adjustment due to change in deferred tax rate N - 316
Adjustment to losses - 1,208
Taxation charge for the year » - 1,282

The tax charge for the year resulted in a current tax receivable of £188k at the year end (2019: £351k).

Deferred tax assets for the taxable losses in the Company of £55.5m (2019: £49.3m) have not been recognlsed as
recoverability is dependent on future profitability which is consxdered uncertain.

Following the enactment of the Finance Act 2020 on 22 July 2020, the UK Corporation Tax rate (from 1 April 2020)
has been maintained at 19% and has not reduced to 17% as previously legislated. The UK Budget announcement
on 3 March 2021 proposed to increase the UK Corporation Tax rate to 25% from 1 April 2023. This rate change was
substantively enacted on 24 May 2021. As this was substantively enacted after the reportlng date the UK
unrecognlsed deferred tax balances as at 31 December 2020 continue to be measured at 19%.

,In 2012 the Trinidad and Tobago tax authorities (“BIR”) reopened the corporate tax assessments relating to 2008 and
2009. The Company received a notice of assessment on which penalties and interest were levied. The enquiry was
subsequently extended to 2010 and 2011 resulting in a further notice of assessment with penalties and interest. The
Company contested these assessments and had initially provided £0.7m in relation to this. During the year to 31
December 2019, the Company entered further settlement negotiations. As a result of these negotiations; agreement
has been reached to settle all outstanding Trinidad and Tobago tax matters at £1.65m. This agreement was lodged

" in court in July 2020. During the year ended 31 December 2020, a payment of £29k was made in order to settle part
of this liability following a request for payment from the BIR. No further requests for payments have been made.

The prior year balance sheet has been restated to correct the presentation of the Trinidad and Tobago Tax current '
tax liability (see note 1.1).
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12 Fixed asset investments

2020 2019
£000 £000
Subsidiary companies . ' )
. *At 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 - -

Details of the investments iAn which the Company held 20% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
are as follows:

Percentage of

ordinary equity Country of
share capital held Registered office incorporation Principal activity
Rever Offshore Freighters Limited 100% 1 United Kingdom Dormant
Rever Offshore Singapore Pte Limited 100% 2 Singapore " Non trading
1. 1 Park Row, Leeds, LS1 5AB
2. 1 Kaki Bukit Road 1, #02-44 Enterprise 1, 415934, Slngapore

During the year, as part of a pre disposal restructuring the Company disposed of its investment in Rever Offshore
Singapore Pte Limited to another subsidiary in the Fara Group for £nil consideration. Further, during the year, Rever
Offshore Freighters Limited was dissolved following a period of non tradlng At the end of the year, the Company did
not hold any investments in subsndlary entities.
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N . \

'43 Tangible fixed assets

Ves;el
fleet and ROU asset ROU asset

equipment ~ Other  property fleet . Total
Cost
At 1 January 2020 1,742 8,336 11,082 29,460 50,620
Additions . ' ‘ - .81 - - 81
Disposals (53) (2,317) - - (2,370)
At 31 December 2020 . 1,689 6,100 11,082 29,460 48,331

. . .

Accumulated depreciation and impairment . '
At 1 January 2020 . 1,220 7,174 1,122 7,690 17,206
Charge for the year - . 181 306 1,122 7,257 8,866
Disposals To@n o (2,317) - - (2,364)
At 31 December 2020 1,354 5,163 2,244 14,947 23,708
.Carrying amount ) . :
At 31 December 2020 ' 335 937 8,838 14,513 24,623
At 31 December 2019 i . ] 522 1,162. 9,960 21,770 - 33,414

Other téngib[e assets with a total net book value of £nil (2019: £146k) which are pledged as security against related.
finance lease agreements. : )

The right-of-use assets are held under lease arrangements. Further details relating to these leasing arrangements
are included in note 17. . . ’

\

14 Inventories

2020 2019
£000 - £000
Spares and consumables o 814 ’ 1,218

Tﬁere is no material difference between the balance sheet value of stocks and their replacement cost as at 31
December 2020 (2019: nil). )
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15 Trade and other receivables

2020 2019
£000 £000
Trade receivables 1,621 6,175
Other receivables 569 - 312
VAT recoverable ’ 289 225
Amounts owed by fellow group undertakings — loan - 9,524
Amounts owed by fellow group undertakings — trading - 4,153
Prepayments and accrued income ' : 1,179 5,256
3,658 25,645

Interest is not charged on intercompany trading balances and are repayable on deménd. Intercompany loan balances
are not interest bearing and are repayable on demand.

16 Trade and other payables

v 2020 2019

' £000 £000 -
Trade payables 3,368 2,690
Amounts owed by fellow group undertakings — loan 41,673 66,064
Amounts owed by fellow group undertakings — trading 8,439 . 8,713
Accruals and deferred income 3,860 5,350
Other taxes and social security ] ) . 623 495
Other payables ’ 534 400

58,497 83,712

Intercompany loan balances attract interest at a rate of 8.0%. Interest is not charged on intercompany trading
balances. Intercompany balances are repayable on demand. : "
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17 Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are classified based on the amounts that are expected to be settled within the next 12 months and
after more than 12 months from the reporting date, as follows:’

2020 2019
£000 £000
Current liabilities 7,633 - 7,281
Non-current liabilities : 17,854 25,487
' 25,487 32,768
Interest on lease liabilities : ' 2,625 1,630
Maturity analys'is: . .
Within 1 year ’ ‘ ' 9,672 9,871
In 2 years ’ ‘ 11,066 - 9,672
In 3 years ) 1,732 11,066
In 4 years ] 1,844 1,732
In 5 years . 1,844 1,844
In over 5 years ) ‘ : 5,215 7,060 -
. Total undiscounted liabilities 31,373 41,245
Future finance charges and other adjustments (5,886) (8,477)

Lease liabilities in the financial statements - 25,487 ’ 32,768

The Compaﬁy does not face a significant liquidity risk with regards toits lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are monitored
in line with the Company's ongoing monitoring of trading and cash flow.

At 31 December 2019, the lease liability due within one year includes leases accounted for under IFRS 16 and all
short term HP loans. : '

'The Company leases several assets, including buiidings, equipment and vessels. The average lease terms is 3 years
for vessel fleet and 10 years for property.

The Company's obligations are secured by the lessors' title to the leased assets for such leases.

The Company extended the vessel charter in 2019 for a 3 year non-cancellable period ending 31 December 2022
with further one-year extension options ending on 31 December 2025. Presently the Company is not reasonably
certain to exercise these options, and accordingly these are excluded from the lease term and are therefore not
included in the measurement of the right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability. Further, the charter contains
variable lease payment terms that are linked to the utilisation of the vessel, with a higher rate being charged if the
vessel is operational than if it is on standby. The breakdown of lease payments for the vessel is as follows:

2020 2019

£000 £000

Fixed payments - ' : : 7,874 8,348
Variable payments. o 197 951
' 8,071 . 9,299
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17 Lease liabilities (continued)

. y 2020 2019
£000 £000
Amounts recognised in profit and loss:
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 8,379 8,812
Interest expense on lease liabilities ' : 2,625 . 1,630
Expense related to short-term leases 1,760 4,740
Expense related to leases of low value assets . 120 131
Expense related to variable lease payments not included in the :
measurement of the lease liability 197 951

Overall the variable payments constitute up to 2% (2019: 10%) of the Company's total lease payment for the vessel.
The variable payments depend on the operational status of the vessel during the period following the fixed operational
term. The vessel was on standby at a lower rate after the end of the fixed operational term in 2020 compared to 2019,
when it was operational for a longer period at the winter operational rates.

The total cash outflow for leases amount to £11.6m (2019: £15.8m).

18 Provisions

. 2020 2019
' a : £000 £000
.Balance at 31 December ._ . - 1,370

: » Restructuring
‘ . provision

£000
At 1 January 2019 . -
Restructuring and redundancy provision - _ 1,370
At 31 December 2019 . . 1,370
Year ending 31 December 2020: ‘ ' -
Utilisation of provision \ (1,370)
At 31 December 2020 , ) : -
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18 Provisions for liabilities (continued)

At the end of the year ended 31 December 2019, following a strategic review, the Fara Group announced its intentions

o0 "cold stack" the Rever Sapphire vessel. This vessel is owned by other companies within the Fara Group. At the
tlme of this decision, the vesse! was utilised by the Company A further consequence of this decision was to cease
certain ROVSV activities. As well as the costs incurred in relation to preparing the vessel for cold stacklng the
Company also incurred redundancy costs in relation to employees who worked on the Rever Sapphire and in ROV
operations as well as a reduction in headcount in support of these operations. These costs, where not spentin 2019,
were provided for at the year end and the costs were incurred by the Company in early 2020.

@

Provisions have been restated as set out in note 1.1.

19 Share capital

2020 2019
. £000 £000
Ordinary share capital
Issued and fully paid
17,000,150 Ordinary shares of £1 each ' 17,000 17,000
20 Capital contribution reserve
2020 - 2019
£000 £000
Capital contribution reserve ' . 1‘3,102, -

" As part of a pre-disposal restructuring, intercompany balances were reviewed with balances due between legacy
entities and target entities being capitalised, settled or forgiven. As a result of this review, the Company was formally .
released from its obligation to repay loan amounts to Huskisson Shipping Limited and Rumford Tankers Limited,
resulting in the Company recognising a capital contribution of £1 %.1m.

21 Financial commitments
The Company had capital commitments of £nil at 31 December 2020 (2019: f249k). :

Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Other leases

2020 2019

£000 - ~ £000

Within one year. o 97 o 92
Between one and five years o : 119 )
: 216 100

-43 -



DocuSign Envelope ID: 228AA3E1-701 1-416A-8A49-A7B71A4162F8

BOSKALIS SUBSEA SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly Rever Offshore UK Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 - ,

22 Employee benefits - defined contribution scheme

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge for the year represents
contributions payable by the Company to the scheme and amounted to £452k (2019: £800k). There were outstanding
pension contributions of £99k at 31 December 2020 (2019: £104k).

23 Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, performance guarantees outstanding to customers and suppliers of the Company amounted
to £nil (2019: £291k).

The Company continues to have an open Value Added Tax (VAT) assessment from the Trinidad and Tobago tax
authorities (Board of Inland Revenue, "BIR"). The assessment relates to output VAT assessed by the BIR in respect
of a customer project completed in 2008 in the amount of £3.4m (TT $31.5m). The Company is exploring options to
have the assessment reversed emphasising that the BIR suffered no loss with the VAT under assessment being fully
reclaimable by the Company's client. The outcome of these options is unknown at this stage.

Further, in 2019, the BIR exercised statutory power to offset a £1.3m (TT $8m) receivable by thé Company against
the open assessment. The VAT receivable relates to input VAT on purchases in Trinidad and Tobago as well as
output VAT previously paid over to the BIR in relation to a customer which subsequently entered into Chapter 11
bankruptcy proceedings receivable under bad debt relief provisions (see note 4). The Company wrote off this VAT
refund receivable in the year ended 31 December 2019 as at the present time it is unlikely that this will be repaid
given the period of time the output VAT assessment matter has been open with no resolution.

AN

24 Related party transactions

The Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemption under FRS 101 which exempts them from disclosing

related party transactions with fellow group undertakings as outlined in IAS 24, as 100% of the voting rights are

controlled by the ultimate parent undertaking. During the year, until 23 Deoember 2020, the ultimate parent

undertaking was Fara Holdco Limited. From 23 December, following the acquisition of the Company by Boskahs
©  Offshore Contracting BV, the ultimate parent company is Royal Boskalis Westminster NV.

“The Comoany considers the directors to be key management personnel and their remuneration is disclosed in note
8. .

25 Ultimate parent company and controlling party

Until 23 December 2020, the Company was a wholly owned subsidiary undertaking of Fara Holdco Limited, the
ultimate parent company, a company registered in Jersey.

From 23 December, following the acquisition of the Company by Boskalis Offshore Contracting BV, the ultimate parent
company is Royal Boskalis Westminster NV, a company incorporated in The Netherlands and listed on Euronext
Amsterdam, which is the largest and smallest parent company preparing Group financial statements which include
Boskalis Subsea Services Limited. A copy of its financial statements may be obtained from Rosmolenweg 20,
3356LK, Papendrecht, The Netherlands.

7’

The parent company is not considered to have a single controlling party.

26 Post balance sheet events (

Subsequent to the year end on 18 January 2021, following the acquisition of the Company by the Boskalis Group the
; Company changed its name from Rever Offshore UK Limited to Boskalis Subsea Services Limited.




